
 

 

 

 

   

   
 

 
  

 

 

      

  

 

         

         

 

         

 

  

 

 

    

  

  

   

 

  

 

  

   

  

  

  

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 
 

 

      

 

FEDERAL ELECTION COMMISSION 

Washington, DC 

VIA ELECTRONIC MAIL ONLY 

reiff@sandlerreiff.com 

Neil Reiff, Esq. January 25, 2024 

1090 Vermont Ave. NW 

Suite 750 

Washington, DC 20005 RE: MUR 8178 

(formerly RR 23L-08) 

(Spencer Toder for Senate) 

Dear Mr. Reiff: 

On January 17, 2024, the Federal Election Commission accepted the signed conciliation 

agreement submitted on behalf of Spencer Toder for Senate, and Spencer Toder in his official 

capacity as treasurer in settlement of a violation of 52 U.S.C. § 30104(b)(4) and 11 C.F.R. 

§ 104.3(b), provisions of the Federal Election Campaign Act of 1971, as amended, and the 

Commission’s regulations. Accordingly, the file has been closed in this matter. 

Documents related to the case will be placed on the public record within 30 days. See 

Disclosure of Certain Documents in Enforcement and Other Matters, 81 Fed. Reg. 50,702 (Aug. 

2, 2016). Information derived in connection with any conciliation attempt will not become 

public without the written consent of the respondent and the Commission. See 52 U.S.C. 

§ 30109(a)(4)(B). Enclosed you will find a copy of the fully executed conciliation agreement for 

your files. Please note that the civil penalty is due within 30 days of the conciliation 

agreement’s effective date. If you have any questions, please contact me at (202) 694-1190. 

Rocelyn Halili 
Attorney 

Sincerely, 

Enclosure: 

Conciliation Agreement 

MUR817800033
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BEFORE THE FEDERAL ELECTION COMMISSION 

In the Matter of ) 
) MUR 8178 

Spencer Toder for Senate ) 
and Spencer Toder in his official capacity ) 
as treasurer ) 

) 

CONCILIATION AGREEMENT 

This matter was initiated by the Federal Election Commission pursuant to infonnation 

ascertained in the nonnal course ofcarrying out its supervisory responsibilities. The 

Commission found reason to believe that Spencer Toder for Senate and Spencer Toder in his 

official capacity as treasurer ("Respondent" or the "Committee") violated 52 U.S.C. 

§ 30104(b)(4) and 11 C.F.R. § 104.3(b) by failing to timely and accurately report disbursements. 

NOW, THEREFORE, the Commission and Respondent, having participated in infonnal 

methods ofconciliation, prior to a finding of probable cause to believe, do hereby agree as 

follows: 

I. The Commission has jurisdiction over Respondent and the subject matter of this 

proceeding, and this Agreement has the effect ofan agreement entered pursuant to 52 U.S.C. 

§ 30109(a)(4)(A)(i). 

II. Respondent has had a reasonable opportunity to demonstrate that no action should 

be taken in this matter. 

III. Respondent enters voluntarily into this Agreement with the Commission. 

IV. The pertinent facts and law in this matter are as follows: 

1. The Committee is the principal campaign committee for Spencer Toder, a 

candidate for U.S. Senate in Missouri in 2022. The Committee's treasurer is Spencer Toder. 

MUR817800034



MlJR 8178 (Spencer Toder for Senate) 
Conciliation Agreement 
Page2of4 

2. The Federal Election Campaign Act of 1971, as amended (the "Act"), 

requires committee treasurers to file reports of receipts and disbursements in accordance with the 

provisionsof52 U.S.C. § 30104. 52 U.S.C. § 30104(a)(l); 11 C.F.R. § 104.l(a). 

3. These reports must include, inter a/ia, the total amount of receipts and 

disbursements, including the appropriate itemizations, where required. 52 U.S.C. § 30104(b)(2), 

(4); I I C.F.R. § I04.3(a), (b). 

4. In addition to the regular quarterly reports, in any year where there is an 

election for which a candidate is seeking election, or nomination for election, the treasurer ofan 

authorized committee shall file a pre-election report, which shall be filed no later than the 12th 

day before an election. 52 U.S.C. § 30104(a)(2)(i); I I C.F.R. § 104.5(a)(2). 

5. The pre-election report must disclose all receipts and disbursements as of 

the 20th day before a primary or general election. 11 C.F.R. § 104.5(a)(2)(i)(B); see also 

52 u.s.c. § 30104(b)(2), (4). 

6. The Committee failed to include disbursements on its original 2022 12-

Day Pre-Primary Report. On July 22, 2022, the Committee tiled a 2022 12-Day Pre-Primary 

Report covering the period from July 1, 2022, to July I 3, 2022. The Report disclosed no 

disbursements on Line 17 (Operating Expenditures) or Line l 9(a) (Loan Repayments ofLoans 

Made or Guaranteed by the Candidate) ofthe Detailed Summary Page. 

7. On December l, 2022, 132 days later and after the primary, the 

Committee filed an amendment to its original 2022 12-Day Pre-Primary Report, disclosing 

$21,598.14 in operating expenditures and $500,000 in candidate loan repayments, a total 

increase of$521,598.14 in disbursements from the original report. 

MUR817800035
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MUR 8178 (Spencer Toder for Senate) 
Conciliation Agreement 
Page 3 of4 

8. Respondent contends that it inadvertently omitted certain transactions 

from the report. Respondent contends that it had established detailed procedures for the 

preparation ofa quarterly report, but it had failed to account for procedures for a Pre-Primary 

Report, which had a different reporting period that did not close at the end ofa month. 

Consequently, Respondent failed to detect the omissions until it perfonned the regular monthly 

reconciliation. 

V. Respondent violated 52 U.S.C. § 30104(b)(4) and I I C.F.R. § 104.3(b) by failing 

to timely and accurately report disbursements. 

VI. Respondent will take the following actions: 

1. Respondent will pay a civi I penalty to the Commission in the amount of 

Four Thousand Dollars ($4,000), pursuant to 52 U.S.C. § 30109(a)(5)(A). In ordinary 

circumstances, the Commission would seek a civil penalty based on the violation outlined in the 

Agreement. However, the Commission is taking into account that the Committee represents that 

it intends to terminate, is defunct, has no cash on hand, and has a limited ability to raise any 

additional funds. 

2. Respondent will cease and desist from committing violations of 52 U.S.C. 

§ 30104(b)(4) and 11 C.F.R. § 104.3(b). 

VII. The Commission, on request ofanyone filing a complaint under 52 U.S.C. 

§ 30 l 09(a)(l) concerning the matters at issue herein or on its own motion, may review 

compliance with this Agreement. If the Commission believes that this Agreement or any 

requirement thereof has been violated, it may institute a civil action for relief in the United States 

District Court for the District ofColumbia. 

MUR817800036



MUR 8 I 78 (Spencer T oder for Senate) 
Conciliation Agreement 
Page4 of4 

VIII. This Agreement shall become effective as of the date that all parties hereto have 

executed same and the Commission has approved the entire Agreement. 

IX. Respondent shall have no more than thirty (30) days from the date this Agreement 

becomes effective to comply with and implement the requirements contained in this Agreement 

and to so notify the Commission. 

X. This Agreement constitutes the entire agreement between the parties on the matter 

raised herein, and no other statement, promise, or agreement, either written or oral, made by 

either party or by agents of either party, that is not contained in this written Agreement shall be 

enforceable. 

FOR THE COMMISSION: 

Lisa J. Stevenson 
Acting General Counsel 

Digitally signed byCha r Ies Charles Kitcher 

K·t h Date: 2024.01.24 
BY: I C e~ 13:51:40 -05•00· 1/24/24 

Charles Kitcher Date 
Associate General Counsel 
for Enforcement 

FOR THE RESPONDENT: 

Counsel for Spencer Toder for Senate 

MUR817800037
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	The largest of the loans was repaid almost immediately, as the candidate became aware that his competitor had committed over $5 million dollars of personal funds and as it was determined that it would not be prudent to continue to spend at the initial budgeted rate.” 
	On January 17, 2023, the Committee filed an which stated, in part: 
	FEC Form 99 

	“I, Spencer Toder, attest that all loans made to the Spencer Toder for Senate Campaign in the 2021-2022 campaign cycle have been forgiven in full.” 
	Filings and correspondence related to the Committee can be found here: Toder for Senate. To date, no further communications have been received from the Committee regarding this matter. 
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	Attachment 1 
	FEDERAL ELECTION COMMISSION 
	WASHINGTON, D.C. 20463 
	‘ 
	                                    March 10, 2023  
	Via Electronic Mail Only 
	Via Electronic Mail Only 

	info@spencertoder.com 
	info@spencertoder.com 
	info@spencertoder.com 
	spencer@spencertoder.com 


	Spencer Toder, Treasurer Spencer Toder for Senate 4021 Laclede Ave P.O. Box 23039 Saint Louis, MO 63056 
	RE: RR 23L-08 
	Dear Mr. Toder:
	          The Federal Election Commission (“Commission”) has ascertained information in the normal course of carrying out its supervisory responsibilities indicating Spencer Toder for Senate and you in your official capacity as treasurer, may have violated the Federal Election Campaign Act of 1971, as amended (the “Act”).  The matter has been referred by the Reports Analysis Division to the Commission’s Office of General Counsel for possible enforcement action under 52 U.S.C. § 30109.Specifically, the Commi
	1 
	2022 12-Day Pre-Primary Repor, totaling $521,598.14.  

	The Act affords you the opportunity to demonstrate in writing that no action should be taken against Spencer Toder for Senate and you in your official capacity as treasurer. If you wish to file a response, you may submit any factual or legal materials that you believe are relevant to the Commission’s consideration of this matter.  Where appropriate, statements should be submitted under oath by persons with relevant knowledge.  Your response, which should be addressed to the General Counsel’s Office, must be
	This matter will remain confidential in accordance with 52 U.S.C. § 30109(a)(4)(B) and § 30109(a)(12)(A) unless you notify the Commission in writing that you wish the matter to be made public.  Please be advised that, although the Commission cannot disclose information regarding an investigation to the public, it may share information on a confidential basis with other law enforcement agencies, including the Department of Justice.While the matter remains open, it will remain confidential as set forth above.
	2 
	https://fec.gov/resources/cms-content/documents/notice2016-06.pdf
	https://fec.gov/resources/cms-content/documents/notice2016-06.pdf


	RR 23L-08 Page 2 
	If you intend to be represented by counsel in this matter, please advise the Commission by completing the enclosed form stating the name, address, and telephone number of such counsel, and authorizing such counsel to receive any notifications and other communications from the Commission.  Please note that you have a legal obligation to preserve all documents, records, and materials relating to the subject matter of the complaint until such time as you are notified that the Commission has closed its file in 
	Any correspondence sent to the Commission, such as a response, must be addressed to one of the following (note, if submitting via email this Office will provide an electronic receipt by email): 
	Mail 
	Mail 
	Mail 
	OR 
	Email 

	Federal Election Commission           Office of Complaints Examination             & Legal Administration Attn: Christal Dennis, Paralegal           1050 First Street, NE
	Federal Election Commission           Office of Complaints Examination             & Legal Administration Attn: Christal Dennis, Paralegal           1050 First Street, NE
	         cela@fec.gov 

	           Washington, DC 20463 
	           Washington, DC 20463 


	As indicated in the FEC’s Notice found at , the office’s mailroom is open on a limited basis and therefore, processing paper correspondence may be delayed.  Accordingly, we strongly encourage you to file responses and additional correspondence via email. 
	content/documents/status-of-fec-operations.pdf
	https://www.fec.gov/resources/cms
	-


	If you have any questions, please contact Christal Dennis at (202) 694-1519.  For your information, we have enclosed a brief description of the Commission’s procedures for handling complaints. 
	Sincerely, 
	Figure
	Roy Q. Luckett Acting Associate General Counsel Complaints Examination & Legal Administration 
	Figure
	Spencer Toder {Spencer Toder for Senate) 
	Response to FEC Referral Letter RR 23L-08 
	3/15/23 
	The information provided by analyst Bradley Austin accurately describes the circumstances in which the initial loan repayments were missed. 
	Within our campaign, we had a process by which bank statements were sent to a data entry associate at the end of each month, as that was when month end statements were received from the bank and forwarded for entry. The 12-day Pre-primary report was mid-month and in the fast-paced nature at that period of campaign activity, I approved what I saw, but did not think to look for what I did not see, and we submitted without catching the error. We had a good process for quarterly reporting but did not take into 
	At the time we received notice in the form of RFAI that there were concerns about the 
	error, we had already reported the loan repayments, as the next time at which we 
	reported, month end had occurred and our reports were processed accordingly, as per 
	our usual policy. Unfortunately, there was no way to go back in time, slow things down, 
	and recognize our mistake in real time. However, I am confident in the transparency in 
	which it was voluntarily brought to the FECs attention to ensure accuracy in the final 
	reporting, prior to seeking termination of the committee, which is currently requested, 
	without penalty. 
	We recognized that the loan repayments were not included in the pre-primary report and did what we believed to be the correct and appropriate thing in ensuring all our banking information was accurate and that all reports and paperwork were appropriately filed and amended. 
	While we had processes in place that we believed would ensure that no mistakes were made, we also relied on software to provide us confidence in that regard. We chose to use ISPolitical for our compliance software, which included what they call "Compliance A.I." On their website, they state, "ISPolitical's proprietary artificial intelligence analyzes FEC and other agency RFAI letters, delivering the most sophisticated compliance report warning system on the market." I had confidence that an error that would
	At all times I have been forthright and honest in reporting this data entry mistake and I proactively reported the error without prompt. I have continued to communicate with our campaign analyst to ensure full compliance and I request now that no penalty be incurred and that the campaign committee be allowed to dissolve. 
	Notification of this referral is being provided to you pursuant to the Commission’s Agency Procedure for Notice to Respondents in Non-Complaint Generated Matters, as published in the Federal Register on August 4, 2009 (74 Fed. Reg. 38,617). 
	1 

	The Commission has the statutory authority to refer knowing and willful violations of the Act to the Department of Justice for potential criminal prosecution, 52 U.S.C. § 30109(a)(5)(C), and to report information regarding violations of law not within its jurisdiction to appropriate law enforcement authorities. Id. § 30107(a)(9). 
	2 
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	Spencer T oder 
	1 FEDERAL ELECTION COMMISSION 2 FIRST GENERAL COUNSEL’S REPORT 
	3 
	3 
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	RR 23L-08 

	4 
	4 
	DATE REFERRED: Mar. 9, 2023 

	5 
	5 
	DATE OF NOTIFICATION: Mar. 10, 2023 

	6 
	6 
	DATE OF LAST RESPONSE:  Mar. 15, 2023 

	7 
	7 
	DATE ACTIVATED:  May 4, 2023 

	8 
	8 
	TD
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	9 
	9 
	EXPIRATION OF SOL: July 22-Dec. 1, 2027 

	10 
	10 
	ELECTION CYCLE:  2022 

	11 
	11 
	SOURCE: 
	Internally Generated 

	12 
	12 
	RESPONDENT: 
	Spencer Toder for Senate and Spencer Toder in his 

	13 
	13 
	official capacity as treasurer1 

	14 
	14 
	RELEVANT STATUTES 

	15 
	15 
	AND REGULATIONS: 
	52 U.S.C. § 30104(b)(4) 

	16 
	16 
	11 C.F.R. § 104.3(b) 

	17 
	17 

	18 
	18 
	INTERNAL REPORTS CHECKED: 
	Disclosure Reports 

	19 
	19 
	FEDERAL AGENCIES CHECKED: 
	None 

	20 
	20 
	I. INTRODUCTION 


	21 
	21 
	21 
	The Reports Analysis Division (“RAD”) referred Spencer Toder for Senate and Spencer 

	22 
	22 
	Toder in his official capacity as treasurer (the “Committee”) to the Office of General Counsel 

	23 
	23 
	(“OGC”) for failing to timely and accurately disclose on its disclosure reports an aggregate of 

	24 
	24 
	$521,598.14 in disbursements, in violation of the Federal Election Campaign Act of 1971, as 

	25 
	25 
	amended (the “Act”).  In its Response, the Committee states that it erroneously missed the 

	26 
	26 
	disbursements in its original report because of the mid-month filing of the report, which did not 

	TR
	1 
	Nicholas Zateslo was the treasurer during the time of the activity at issue. See Spencer Toder for Senate, 

	TR
	Amended Statement of Organization (Mar. 19, 2022). On January 24, 2023, Spencer Toder for Senate filed an 

	TR
	amended Statement of Organization naming Toder as treasurer. 


	RR 23L-08 (Spencer Toder for Senate) 
	First General Counsel’s Report 
	Page 2 of 7 1 coincide with the Committee’s receipt of its month-end bank statements, and the failure of its 2 compliance software.  3 We recommend that the Commission open a Matter Under Review (“MUR”) and find 4 reason to believe that the Committee violated 52 U.S.C. § 30104(b)(4) and 11 C.F.R. § 104.3(b) 5 by failing to report disbursements totaling $on its original 2022 12-Day Pre-Primary 6 Report.  We further recommend that the Commission authorize pre-probable cause conciliation 7 with the Committee. 
	521,598.14 
	2 
	3 
	4 
	5 

	2 
	2 
	2 
	See Spencer Ross Toder, Statement of Candidacy (Apr. 15, 2021). Toder lost the Democratic primary 

	election on August 2, 2022. See Missouri Secretary of State, Missouri Election Results, Primary Election August 2, 
	election on August 2, 2022. See Missouri Secretary of State, Missouri Election Results, Primary Election August 2, 

	2022, https://www.sos.mo.gov/elections/results (last visited July 18, 2023). 
	2022, https://www.sos.mo.gov/elections/results (last visited July 18, 2023). 

	3 
	3 
	See Spencer Toder for Senate, Amended Statement of Organization (Mar. 19, 2022); Spencer Toder for 

	Senate Amended Statement of Organization (Jan. 24, 2023). 
	Senate Amended Statement of Organization (Jan. 24, 2023). 

	4 
	4 
	Referral at 1 (June 22, 2023). 

	5 
	5 
	Id. 


	RR 23L-08 (Spencer Toder for Senate) 
	RR 23L-08 (Spencer Toder for Senate) 
	RR 23L-08 (Spencer Toder for Senate) 

	First General Counsel’s Report 
	First General Counsel’s Report 

	Page 3 of 7 
	Page 3 of 7 

	1 
	1 
	disclosing $21,598.14 in operating expenditures and $500,000 in candidate loan repayments, a 

	2 
	2 
	total increase of $521,598.14 in disbursements from the original report.6 

	3 
	3 
	RAD issued a Request for Additional Information (“RFAI”) to the Committee on 

	4 
	4 
	December 6, 2022, referencing the Committee’s Amended 2022 12-Day Pre-Primary Report.7 

	5 
	5 
	The RFAI asked the Committee to clarify the substantial increase in disbursements disclosed on 

	6 
	6 
	its Amended 2022 12-Day Pre-Primary Report and explain why it failed to include this 

	7 
	7 
	information in its original report.8 

	8 
	8 
	B. Responses 

	9 
	9 

	10 
	10 
	On December 27, 2022, the Committee responded to the RFAI by filing a Miscellaneous 

	11 
	11 
	Electronic Submission (“Form 99”).9 The Form 99 stated that, with respect to the 12-Day Pre
	-


	12 
	12 
	Primary Report, it appears that the loans and expenses did not upload properly into the 

	13 
	13 
	Commission’s reporting system. 10 

	14 
	14 
	On March 15, 2023, the Committee submitted a Response to RAD’s Referral, stating that 

	15 
	15 
	the Committee usually processes bank statements at the end of each month, and because of the 

	16 
	16 
	“fast-paced nature” of filing the 12-Day Pre-Primary Report in the middle of the month, which 

	17 
	17 
	covers the period of July 1 to July 13, 2022, the Committee failed to include the disbursements. 11 

	18 
	18 
	The Committee also claims that its compliance software, which was supposed to issue a warning 

	19 
	19 
	for a possible RFAI based on inputted information, failed to produce the warning. 12 

	TR
	6 Id. 

	TR
	7 Id. at 2. 

	TR
	8 RFAI (Dec. 6, 2022), https://docquery.fec.gov/pdf/708/202212060300162708/202212060300162708.pdf. 

	TR
	9 See Toder for Senate, Form 99 (Dec. 27, 2022), https://docquery.fec.gov/dcdev/fectxt/1673539.txt. 

	TR
	10 Id. 

	TR
	11 Comm. Resp. at 1 (Mar. 15, 2023). 

	TR
	12 Id. 


	RR 23L-08 (Spencer Toder for Senate) 
	First General Counsel’s Report 
	Page 4 of 7 1 III. LEGAL ANALYSIS 2 The Act requires committee treasurers to file reports of receipts and disbursements in 3 accordance with the provisions of 52 U.S.C. § These reports must include, inter alia, 4 the total amount of receipts and disbursements, including the appropriate itemizations, where 5 In addition to the regular quarterly reports, in any year where there is an election for 6 which a candidate is seeking election, or nomination for election, the treasurer of an authorized 7 committee sh
	30104.
	13 
	required.
	14 
	election.
	15 
	election.
	16 
	Report.
	17 
	521,598.14
	18 
	521,598.14 
	 failure.
	19 

	13 
	13 
	13 
	52 U.S.C. § 30104(a)(1); 11 C.F.R. § 104.1(a). 

	14 
	14 
	52 U.S.C. § 30104(b)(2), (4); 11 C.F.R. § 104.3(a), (b). 

	15 
	15 
	52 U.S.C. § 30104(a)(2)(i); 11 C.F.R. § 104.5(a)(2). 

	16 
	16 
	11 C.F.R. § 104.5(a)(2)(i)(B); see also 52 U.S.C. § 30104(b)(2), (4). 

	17 
	17 
	Comm. Resp. at 1. 

	18 
	18 
	Referral at 2; compare original 2022 12-Day Pre-Primary Report at 4, with Amended 2022 12-Day Pre-

	Primary Report at 4. 
	Primary Report at 4. 

	19 
	19 
	Comm. Resp. at 1. 
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	1 
	1 
	included in the 12-Day Pre-Primary Report, the Committee requests that the Commission impose 

	2 
	2 
	no penalty and that the campaign committee be allowed to terminate because the omission was 

	3 
	3 
	an error and the Committee has been “forthright and honest in reporting this data entry mistake 

	4 
	4 
	and . . .proactively reported the error without prompt.”20 


	Figure
	In circumstances involving committees that made inadvertent 
	Figure

	7 
	7 
	7 
	reporting errors by omitting receipts and disbursements, the Commission has consistently found 

	8 
	8 
	reason to believe and engaged in pre-probable cause conciliation, incorporating the self-reported 

	9 
	9 
	nature of the reporting violations.22 

	10 
	10 
	Accordingly, we recommend that the Commission find reason to believe that the 

	11 
	11 
	Committee and Spencer Toder in his official capacity as treasurer violated 52 U.S.C. 

	12 
	12 
	§ 30104(b)(4) and 11 C.F.R. § 104.3(b) by failing to timely and accurately report disbursements. 


	13 14 15 16 17 18 
	Figure
	Id. 
	20 

	21 
	Figure
	22 
	See, e.g., Conciliation Agreement, MUR 8070 (Democratic Executive Committee of Florida); Conciliation Agreement, MUR 8061 (Republican Party of Minnesota—Federal); Conciliation Agreement, MUR 8050 (Montana Democratic Party). 
	RR 23L-08 (Spencer Toder for Senate) 
	First General Counsel’s Report 
	Page 6 of 7 1 2 3 4 5 6 7 8 9 10 11 12 
	RR 23L-08 (Spencer Toder for Senate) 
	First General Counsel’s Report 
	Page 7 of 7 
	1 V. RECOMMENDATIONS 
	2 
	2 
	2 
	1. Open a Matter Under Review; 

	3 
	3 
	3 
	2. Find reason to believe that Spencer Toder for Senate and Spencer Toder in his 

	4 official capacity as treasurer violated 52 U.S.C. § 30104(b)(4) and 11 C.F.R. § 104.3(b) by failing to timely and accurately report disbursements; 

	6 
	6 
	3. Enter into conciliation with Spencer Toder for Senate and Spencer Toder in his 7 official capacity as treasurer prior to a finding of probable cause to believe; 

	8 
	8 
	4. Approve the attached Factual and Legal Analysis; 

	9 
	9 
	5. Approve the attached Conciliation Agreement; and 


	6. Approve the appropriate letter. 11 12 Lisa J. Stevenson 
	13 Acting General Counsel 14 Charles Kitcher Associate General Counsel for Enforcement 
	16 17 18 
	16 17 18 
	16 17 18 
	July 19, 2023____________ Date 

	19 
	19 

	21 
	21 

	22 23 
	22 23 


	__________________________________ Claudio J. Pavia Deputy Associate General Counsel for Enforcement _________________________ Mark Allen Assistant General Counsel _________________________ Rocelyn Halili 
	24 
	24 
	24 
	Attorney 
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	Attachments: 
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	1. Factual and Legal Analysis 
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	1 
	FEDERAL ELECTION COMMISSION 

	2 
	2 

	3 
	3 
	FACTUAL AND LEGAL ANALYSIS 

	4 
	4 
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	Spencer Toder for Senate and Spencer 
	Spencer Toder for Senate and Spencer 
	) 

	Toder in his official capacity as treasurer 
	Toder in his official capacity as treasurer 
	) 


	CERTIFICATION 
	CERTIFICATION 

	I, Vicktoria J. Allen, recording secretary of the Federal Election Commission executive session, do hereby certify that on October 05, 2023, the Commission took the following actions in the above-captioned matter:  
	1. Failed by a vote of 2-3 to: Refer the matter to the Office of Alternative Dispute Resolution. 
	Commissioners Cooksey and Trainor voted affirmatively for the motion.  Commissioners Broussard, Lindenbaum, and Weintraub dissented.  Commissioner Dickerson abstained. 
	2. Failed by a vote of 3-3 to: 
	a. 
	a. 
	a. 
	Open a Matter Under Review. MUR 8178 

	b. 
	b. 
	Find reason to believe that Spencer Toder for Senate and SpencerToder in his official capacity as treasurer violated 52 U.S.C.§ 30104(b)(4) and 11 C.F.R. § 104.3(b) by failing to timely andaccurately report disbursements. 

	c. 
	c. 
	Enter into conciliation with Spencer Toder for Senate and SpencerToder in his official capacity as treasurer prior to a finding ofprobable cause to believe. 

	d. 
	d. 
	Approve the Factual and Legal Analysis, as recommended in theFirst General Counsel’s Report dated July 19, 2023. 

	e. 
	e. 
	Approve the Conciliation Agreement, as recommended in the FirstGeneral Counsel’s Report dated July 19, 2023. 

	f. 
	f. 
	Approve the appropriate letter. 
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	motion. Commissioners Cooksey, Dickerson, and Trainor dissented. 
	3. Decided by a vote of 5-1 to: 
	Open a Matter Under Review. 
	b. 
	b. 
	b. 
	Find reason to believe that Spencer Toder for Senate and Spencer Toder in his official capacity as treasurer violated 52 U.S.C.  § 30104(b)(4) and 11 C.F.R. § 104.3(b) by failing to timely and accurately report disbursements. 

	c. 
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	Approve the Factual and Legal Analysis, as recommended in the First General Counsel’s Report dated July 19, 2023. 

	e. Approve the Conciliation Agreement, as recommended in the First General Counsel’s Report dated July 19, 2023 
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	f. 
	f. 
	Approve the appropriate letter. 


	Commissioners Broussard, Cooksey, Dickerson, Lindenbaum, and Weintraub voted affirmatively for the decision.  Commissioner Trainor dissented. 
	October 6, 2023 Date 
	Attest: 
	Digitally signed by Vicktoria J Allen
	Figure

	Vicktoria J Allen 
	Vicktoria J Allen 
	Date:  17:38:59 -04'00' 
	2023.10.06

	Vicktoria J. Allen Deputy Secretary of the Commission 
	FEDERAL ELECTION COMMISSION 
	Washington, DC 20463 
	Figure
	VIA ELECTRONIC MAIL 
	info@spencertoder.com 
	info@spencertoder.com 
	info@spencertoder.com 
	spencer@spencertoder.com 


	October 12, 2023
	Spencer Toder, Treasurer Spencer Toder for Senate 4021 Laclede Ave P.O. Box 23039 Saint Louis, MO 63056 
	RE: MUR 8178 Spencer Toder for Senate 
	Dear Mr. Toder: 
	In the normal course of carrying out its supervisory responsibilities, the Federal Election Commission became aware of information suggesting Spencer Toder for Senate and you in your official capacity as treasurer (the “Committee”) may have violated the Federal Election Campaign Act of 1971, as amended (“the Act”). On March 10, 2023, the Federal Election Commission (“Commission”) notified the Committee of a Referral by the Commission’s Reports Analysis Division (RR 23L-08) to the Commission’s Office of Gene
	Upon review of the referred matter, the Commission, on October 5, 2023, found reason to believe that the Committee violated 52 U.S.C. § 30104(b)(4) and 11 C.F.R. § 104.3(b) by failing to timely and accurately report disbursements.  The Factual and Legal Analysis, which forms the basis of the Commission’s determination, is enclosed for your information. 
	In order to expedite the resolution of this matter, the Commission has authorized the Office of the General Counsel to enter into negotiations directed towards reaching a conciliation agreement in settlement of this matter prior to a finding of probable cause to believe.  Preprobable cause conciliation is not mandated by the Act or the Commission’s regulations but is a voluntary step in the enforcement process that the Commission is offering the Committee as a way to resolve the matter at an early stage and
	-

	MUR 8178 (Spencer Toder for Senate) Page 2 of 3 
	or not the Commission should find probable cause to believe that the Committee violated the law.   
	Enclosed is a conciliation agreement for your consideration, which includes a civil 
	penalty   Please note that the Committee has a legal 
	obligation to preserve all documents, records and materials relating to this matter until such time as you are notified that the Commission has closed its file in this matter.  See 18 U.S.C. § 1519.  This matter will remain confidential in accordance with 52 U.S.C. § 30109(a)(4)(B) and 30109(a)(12)(A) unless you notify the Commission in writing that you wish the matter to be made public.  Please be advised that, although the Commission cannot disclose information regarding an investigation to the public, it
	1 

	If you are interested in engaging in pre-probable cause conciliation, please contact Rocelyn Halili, the attorney assigned to this matter, at (202) 694-1190 or at , within seven days of receipt of this letter.  During conciliation, you may submit any factual or legal materials that you believe are relevant to the resolution of this matter.  Because the Commission only enters into pre-probable cause conciliation in matters that it believes have a reasonable opportunity for settlement, we may proceed to the n
	mhalili@fec.gov

	Pre-probable cause conciliation, extensions of time, and other enforcement procedures and options are discussed more comprehensively in the Commission’s “Guidebook for Complainants and Respondents on the FEC Enforcement Process,” which is available on the Commission’s website at . 
	http://www.fec.gov/em/respondent_guide.pdf

	If you intend to be represented by counsel in this matter, please advise the Commission by completing the enclosed Designation of Counsel form stating the name, address, and telephone number of such counsel, and authorizing such counsel to receive any notifications and other communications from the Commission. 
	The Commission has the statutory authority to refer knowing and willful violations of the Act to the Department of Justice for potential criminal prosecution, 52 U.S.C. § 30109(a)(5)(C), and to report information regarding violations of law not within its jurisdiction to appropriate law enforcement authorities. Id. § 30107(a)(9). 
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	We look forward to your response. 
	Enclosures: Factual and Legal Analysis 
	On behalf of the Commission, Dara Lindenbaum Chair 
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	______________________________________________________________________________ 

	24 
	24 

	25 
	25 
	On October 5, 2023, the Commission found reason to believe that Spencer Toder for 

	26 
	26 
	Senate and Spencer Toder in his official capacity as treasurer (the “Committee”) violated 

	27 
	27 
	52 U.S.C. § 30104(b)(4) and 11 C.F.R. § 104.3(b) by failing to timely and accurately report 

	28 
	28 
	disbursements in its 2022 12-Day Pre-Primary Report, totaling $521,598.14.1 
	The Commission 

	29 
	29 
	also voted to enter into pre-probable cause conciliation with the Committee.2 
	Attached is a 

	30 
	30 
	negotiated conciliation agreement with the Committee, signed by the Committee’s counsel, 

	31 
	31 
	which would resolve the violations.3 We recommend that the Commission accept the signed 


	agreement.  32 33 34 
	1 
	1 
	1 
	Certification ¶ 3.b (Oct. 6, 2023), MUR 8178 (Spencer Toder for Senate). 

	2 
	2 
	Id. ¶ 3.c. 

	3 
	3 
	Attach. 1. 


	Figure
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	1 2 3 4 6 7 8 9 11 12 13 14 16 Therefore, we recommend that the 17 
	18 Commission accept the attached agreement and close the file in this matter. 19 
	RECOMMENDATIONS: 
	21 
	22 1. Accept the attached conciliation agreement with Spencer Toder for Senate and 23 Spencer Toder in his official capacity as treasurer; 24 
	2. Approve the appropriate letter; and 26 
	27 3. Close the file. 
	28 29 31 
	BEFORE THE FEDERAL ELECTION COMMISSION 
	In the Matter of ) 
	) MUR 8178 
	Spencer Toder for Senate (Pre-Probable ) 
	Cause Conciliation Agreement) ) 
	CERTIFICATION 
	CERTIFICATION 

	I, Vicktoria J. Allen, Deputy Secretary of the Federal Election Commission, do hereby certify that on January 17, 2024, the Commission decided by a vote of 4-0 to take the following actions in MUR 8178: 
	1. 
	1. 
	1. 
	Accept the conciliation agreement with Spencer Toder for Senate and Spencer Toder in his official capacity as treasurer, as recommended in the Memorandum to the Commission dated January 9, 2024. 

	2. 
	2. 
	Approve the appropriate letter. 

	3. 
	3. 
	Close the file. 


	Commissioners Broussard, Cooksey, Dickerson, and Weintraub voted affirmatively for the decision.  Commissioner Trainor did not vote.  Commissioner Lindenbaum recused herself with respect to this matter and did not vote. 
	January 17, 2024 Date 
	Attest: 
	Digitally signed by Vicktoria J Allen
	Figure


	Vicktoria J Allen 
	Vicktoria J Allen 
	Date:  18:18:13 -05'00' 
	2024.01.17

	 Vicktoria J. Allen Deputy Secretary of the Commission 
	Figure
	FEDERAL ELECTION COMMISSION Washington, DC 
	VIA ELECTRONIC MAIL ONLY 
	reiff@sandlerreiff.com 
	reiff@sandlerreiff.com 

	Neil Reiff, Esq. January 25, 2024 1090 Vermont Ave. NW Suite 750 Washington, DC 20005 RE: MUR 8178 
	(formerly RR 23L-08) (Spencer Toder for Senate) 
	Dear Mr. Reiff: 
	On January 17, 2024, the Federal Election Commission accepted the signed conciliation agreement submitted on behalf of Spencer Toder for Senate, and Spencer Toder in his official capacity as treasurer in settlement of a violation of 52 U.S.C. § 30104(b)(4) and 11 C.F.R. § 104.3(b), provisions of the Federal Election Campaign Act of 1971, as amended, and the Commission’s regulations. Accordingly, the file has been closed in this matter. 
	Documents related to the case will be placed on the public record within 30 days. See Disclosure of Certain Documents in Enforcement and Other Matters, 81 Fed. Reg. 50,702 (Aug. 2, 2016). Information derived in connection with any conciliation attempt will not become public without the written consent of the respondent and the Commission. See 52 U.S.C. § 30109(a)(4)(B). Enclosed you will find a copy of the fully executed conciliation agreement for your files. Please note that the civil penalty is due within
	Rocelyn Halili Attorney 
	Sincerely, 
	Enclosure: Conciliation Agreement 
	BEFORE THE FEDERAL ELECTION COMMISSION 
	In the Matter of 
	In the Matter of 
	In the Matter of 
	) 

	TR
	) 
	MUR 8178 

	Spencer Toder for Senate 
	Spencer Toder for Senate 
	) 

	and Spencer Toder in his official capacity 
	and Spencer Toder in his official capacity 
	) 

	as treasurer 
	as treasurer 
	) 

	TR
	) 


	CONCILIATION AGREEMENT 
	This matter was initiated by the Federal Election Commission pursuant to infonnation ascertained in the nonnal course ofcarrying out its supervisory responsibilities. The Commission found reason to believe that Spencer Toder for Senate and Spencer Toder in his official capacity as treasurer ("Respondent" or the "Committee") violated 52 U.S.C. § 30104(b)(4) and 11 C.F.R. § 104.3(b) by failing to timely and accurately report disbursements. 
	NOW, THEREFORE, the Commission and Respondent, having participated in infonnal methods ofconciliation, prior to a finding of probable cause to believe, do hereby agree as follows: 
	I. The Commission has jurisdiction over Respondent and the subject matter ofthis proceeding, and this Agreement has the effect ofan agreement entered pursuant to 52 U.S.C. § 30109(a)(4)(A)(i). 
	II. Respondent has had a reasonable opportunity to demonstrate that no action should be taken in this matter. 
	III. Respondent enters voluntarily into this Agreement with the Commission. 
	IV. The pertinent facts and law in this matter are as follows: 
	1. The Committee is the principal campaign committee for Spencer Toder, a candidate for U.S. Senate in Missouri in 2022. The Committee's treasurer is Spencer Toder. 
	MlJR 8178 (Spencer Toder for Senate) Conciliation Agreement Page2of4 
	2. 
	2. 
	2. 
	The Federal Election Campaign Act of 1971, as amended (the "Act"), requires committee treasurers to file reports ofreceipts and disbursements in accordance with the provisionsof52 U.S.C. § 30104. 52 U.S.C. § 30104(a)(l); 11 C.F.R. § 104.l(a). 

	3. 
	3. 
	These reports must include, inter a/ia, the total amount ofreceipts and disbursements, including the appropriate itemizations, where required. 52 U.S.C. § 30104(b)(2), (4); I I C.F.R. § I04.3(a), (b). 

	4. 
	4. 
	In addition to the regular quarterly reports, in any year where there is an election for which a candidate is seeking election, or nomination for election, the treasurer ofan authorized committee shall file a pre-election report, which shall be filed no later than the 12th day before an election. 52 U.S.C. § 30104(a)(2)(i); I I C.F.R. § 104.5(a)(2). 

	5. 
	5. 
	The pre-election report must disclose all receipts and disbursements as of the 20th day before a primary or general election. 11 C.F.R. § 104.5(a)(2)(i)(B); see also 52 u.s.c. § 30104(b)(2), (4). 

	6. 
	6. 
	The Committee failed to include disbursements on its original 2022 12Day Pre-Primary Report. On July 22, 2022, the Committee tiled a 2022 12-Day Pre-Primary Report covering the period from July 1, 2022, to July I 3, 2022. The Report disclosed no disbursements on Line 17 (Operating Expenditures) or Line l 9(a) (Loan Repayments ofLoans Made or Guaranteed by the Candidate) ofthe Detailed Summary Page. 
	-


	7. 
	7. 
	On December l, 2022, 132 days later and after the primary, the Committee filed an amendment to its original 2022 12-Day Pre-Primary Report, disclosing $in operating expenditures and $500,000 in candidate loan repayments, a total increase of$
	21,598.14 
	521,598.14 in disbursements from the original report. 
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	8. Respondent contends that it inadvertently omitted certain transactions from the report. Respondent contends that it had established detailed procedures for the preparation ofa quarterly report, but it had failed to account for procedures for a Pre-Primary Report, which had a different reporting period that did not close at the end ofa month. Consequently, Respondent failed to detect the omissions until it perfonned the regular monthly reconciliation. 
	V. Respondent violated 52 U.S.C. § 30104(b)(4) and I I C.F.R. § 104.3(b) by failing to timely and accurately report disbursements. 
	VI. Respondent will take the following actions: 
	1. 
	1. 
	1. 
	Respondent will pay a civi I penalty to the Commission in the amount of Four Thousand Dollars ($4,000), pursuant to 52 U.S.C. § 30109(a)(5)(A). In ordinary circumstances, the Commission would seek a civil penalty based on the violation outlined in the Agreement. However, the Commission is taking into account that the Committee represents that it intends to terminate, is defunct, has no cash on hand, and has a limited ability to raise any additional funds. 

	2. 
	2. 
	Respondent will cease and desist from committing violations of 52 U.S.C. § 30104(b)(4) and 11 C.F.R. § 104.3(b). 


	VII. The Commission, on request ofanyone filing a complaint under 52 U.S.C. § 30 l 09(a)(l) concerning the matters at issue herein or on its own motion, may review compliance with this Agreement. If the Commission believes that this Agreement or any requirement thereof has been violated, it may institute a civil action for relief in the United States District Court for the District ofColumbia. 
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	VIII. This Agreement shall become effective as of the date that all parties hereto have executed same and the Commission has approved the entire Agreement. 
	IX. Respondent shall have no more than thirty (30) days from the date this Agreement becomes effective to comply with and implement the requirements contained in this Agreement 
	and to so notify the Commission. 
	X. This Agreement constitutes the entire agreement between the parties on the matter raised herein, and no other statement, promise, or agreement, either written or oral, made by either party or by agents of either party, that is not contained in this written Agreement shall be 
	enforceable. FOR THE COMMISSION: Lisa J. Stevenson 
	Acting General Counsel 
	Digitally signed by
	Cha r Ies 
	Charles Kitcher ·t h 
	K
	Date: 2024.01.24 

	BY: I C e~ 13:51:40 -05•00· 1/24/24 Charles Kitcher Date Associate General Counsel 
	for Enforcement 
	FOR THE RESPONDENT: 
	Figure
	Figure
	Counsel for Spencer Toder for Senate 






